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State of California
California Regional Water Quality Control Board
San Francisco Bay Region

IN THE MATTER OF:
Stay Cal HMB, LLC Complaint No.
2110 South El Camino Real R2-2020-1004
San Mateo, California 94403 for

Mandatory Minimum Penalty

N N N N N N N ' ' '

The Assistant Executive Officer of the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Board (Regional
Water Board) hereby gives notice that:

1. Stay Cal HMB, LLC (Stay Cal) violated provisions of law for which the Regional Water
Board must impose liability under section 13399.33 of the California Water Code (Water
Code).

2. Unless waived, a hearing concerning complaint No. R2-2020-1004 (Complaint) will be
held before the Regional Water Board at its regular meeting on April 8, 2020, at the First
Floor Auditorium, Elihu M. Harris Building, 1515 Clay Street, Oakland, California. Stay
Cal will have an opportunity to appear and be heard and to contest the allegations in this
Complaint and imposition of a monetary penalty by the Regional Water Board. An
agenda for the meeting will be provided to Stay Cal not less than 10 days before the
hearing date. A meeting agenda will also be available at
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/board_info/agendas/. Stay Cal must
submit all comments and written evidence concerning this Complaint to the Regional
Water Board not later than 5 p.m. on March 9, 2020, so that such comments may be
considered. Any written evidence submitted to the Regional Water Board after this date
and time will not be accepted or responded to in writing.

3. Stay Cal can waive its right to a hearing to contest the allegations contained in this
Complaint by signing and submitting the enclosed Waiver Form (Attachment A) and
paying the liability in full or taking other actions described in the form. If this matter
proceeds to a hearing, the Assistant Executive Officer of the Regional Water Board
reserves the right to seek an increase in the penalty amount to cover the costs of
enforcement incurred subsequent to the issuance of this Complaint through hearing. The

enforcement costs may be recovered pursuant to Water Code section 13399.33,
subdivision (d).
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4,

At the hearing, the Regional Water Board will consider whether to affirm, reject, or
modify the proposed mandatory minimum penalties and assessment of costs pursuant to
Water Code section 13399.33, or whether to refer the matter to the Attorney General for
recovery of judicial civil liability.

FACTUAL BASIS

5.

10.

11.

Stay Cal owns the property at 1410 Cabrillo Highway South, Half Moon Bay, California
94019 (Site) where Cameron’s Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay is located.

Stay Cal filed for coverage under the State’s General Permit for Storm Water Discharges
Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities, Order No. 2009-0009-
DWQ as amended by Order No. 2010-0014 and Order No. 2012-0006, NPDES

No. CAS000002 (Permit), by submitting a Notice of Intent for permit coverage on
December 21, 2015. The Site is registered as having Permit coverage in the Stormwater
Multiple Application and Report Tracking System (SMARTS) database under the
following waste discharger identification number: WDID No. 2 41C374988.

Section XVI.A of the Permit requires submission of an annual report of stormwater
discharges (Annual Report) by September 1 each year to SMARTS. Stay Cal did not
submit the Annual Report for the 2017-2018 reporting year by the September 1, 2018,
deadline.

On October 31, 2018, Regional Water Board staff issued a notice of non-compliance
(Attachment B) informing Stay Cal that the Regional Water Board had not received the
2017-2018 Annual Report by the required date and directed Stay Cal to submit it by
November 30, 2018, to avoid a penalty. A signed certified mail receipt establishes that
Stay Cal received the notice of non-compliance. Regional Water Board staff received no
response to the October 31, 2018, notice by February 13, 2019.

On February 13, 2019, Regional Water Board staff issued a second notice of non-
compliance (Attachment B) informing Stay Cal that the Regional Water Board had not
received the 2017-2018 Annual Report and instructing Stay Cal to submit it by March 13,
2019, to avoid a penalty. A signed certified mail receipt establishes that Stay Cal received
the notice of non-compliance.

On February 28, 2019, Regional Water Board staff contacted Mr. Hiten Suraj, Stay Cal’s
contact person listed on SMARTS, reminding him to submit the 2017-2018 Annual
Report by March 13, 2019. Staff noted that failure to submit the Annual Report would
trigger another mandatory minimum penalty of $1,000. (Stay Cal failed to submit an
Annual Report for the prior reporting year [2016-2017] and agreed to settle the violation
for the $1,000 mandatory minimum penalty.) By March 13, 2019, Stay Cal had not
submitted the 2017-2018 Annual Report.

On May 6, 2019, Regional Water Board staff again contacted Mr. Suraj about the missing

2017-2018 Annual Report and the notices sent to him about the $1,000 mandatory
minimum penalty. Mr. Suraj uploaded the 2017-2018 Annual Report to SMARTS on

Page 2 of 5





Complaint No. R2-2020-1004 January 21, 2020
Stay Cal HMB, LLC

12.

13.

14.

15.

May 7, 2019, significantly after the deadlines established in the Permit and the notices of
non-compliance. Mr. Suraj informed staff on May 9, 2019, that the Annual Report had
been uploaded to SMARTS.

On July 24, 2019, the Assistant Executive Officer of the Regional Water Board sent Stay
Cal an offer to settle the violation for the $1,000 mandatory minimum penalty
(Attachment C). Stay Cal had the opportunity to accept the offer, contest the alleged
violation, or reject the offer by August 23, 2019.

Throughout August and September of 2019, Regional Water Board staff exchanged

communications with Mr. Suraj to remind him of the July 24, 2019, settlement offer and
to try to resolve the late reporting violation, as discussed in emails from Mr. Suraj dated
August 23 and September 26, 2019, and emails staff sent on September 18 and 26, 2019.

During October 2019, Mr. Suraj ceased communicating with Regional Water Board staff
despite multiple attempts by staff to reach him, including an email sent on October 9,
2019, informing Mr. Suraj that failure to respond by October 11, 2019, may result in
issuance of a formal complaint to impose a monetary penalty.

This complaint seeks fair and consistent enforcement of the Permit’s Annual Report
requirement. Of approximately 190 dischargers that did not submit an Annual Reports by
September 1, 2018, for the 2017-2018 reporting year, Stay Cal is the only remaining
discharger that has not submitted the Annual Report in accordance with a notice of
noncompliance or otherwise resolve the alleged violation through a challenge or
agreement to settle for a mandatory minimum penalty of $1,000. This complaint seeks
imposition of a mandatory minimum penalty that includes staff costs incurred for
enforcement as specified in Water Code section 13399.33.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

16.

The Stormwater Enforcement Act, Water Code section 13399.25 et seq., describes a
notification and enforcement process for Annual Reports not submitted as required by the
Permit:

a. Water Code section 13399.31, subdivision (d), provides, “If a discharger to which a
notice is sent pursuant to subdivision (c) fails to submit the annual report ... to the
regional board within 60 days from the date on which the notice is sent pursuant to
subdivision (b), the regional board shall impose the penalties described in subdivision
(c) of Water Code section 13399.33.”

b. Water Code section 13399.33, subdivision (c), requires the Regional Water Board to
assess a mandatory minimum penalty of $1,000 for each violation when a discharger
fails to submit an annual report in accordance with Water Code section 13399.31.

c. Water Code section 13399.33, subdivision (d), requires the Regional Water Board to
recover from the persons described in subdivision (c) the costs incurred by the
Regional Water Board in regard to those persons.
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17.

18.

While this Complaint only seeks the mandatory minimum penalty pursuant to Water
Code section 13399.33, including staff costs, the maximum amount of administrative
civil liability assessable pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c), is
$10,000 per day per violation.

Issuance of this Complaint is an enforcement action and is therefore exempt from the
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Res. Code Section 21000 et
seq.) pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations sections 15308 and 15321,
subdivision (a), paragraph (2).

ALLEGED VIOLATION

19.

Stay Cal HMB LLC failed to submit the 2017-2018 Annual Report by September 1,
2018, as the Permit requires and must be assessed a mandatory minimum liability
pursuant to Water Code sections 13399.31 and 13399.33. In accordance with Water Code
section 13399.31, subdivisions (b) and (c), Stay Cal was served with two notices of non-
compliance, sent on October 31, 2018, and February 13, 2019. Stay Cal failed to submit
the required Annual Report by the deadlines established in the notices of non-
compliance. Therefore, Stay Cal failed to comply with the Permit and is subject to civil
liability as described below.

PROPOSED LIABILITY

20.

21.

22.

23.

Pursuant to Water Code section 13399.33, subdivisions (c) and (d), the Regional Water
Board shall administratively impose a penalty in an amount not less than $1,000 plus
staff costs for the violation cited above.

Stay Cal violated the Permit for 248 days (from September 1, 2018, when the Annual
Report was due, to May 7, 2019, when the Annual Report was uploaded to SMARTS).
The maximum penalty the Regional Water Board could impose pursuant to Water Code
section 13385, subdivision (c), is $2,480,000.

Water Code section 13399.33, subdivision (d), requires the recovery of costs incurred by
the Regional Water Board for enforcement actions against dischargers who fail to submit
the required annual report. Regional Water Board staff spent 38.5 hours on this
enforcement action. The costs calculated for this staff time are based on 28.5 hours of
line staff time at $118 per hour, 8 hours of senior supervisor time at $163 per hour, 1 hour
of program chief time at $197 per hour, and 1 hour of the Assistant Executive Officer
time at $260 per hour. The staff costs incurred are $5,100.

The total proposed liability is $6,100 ($1,000 penalty and $5,100 in staff costs).
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HEARING WAIVER

Stay Cal may waive its right to a hearing and pay the proposed liability as discussed in the attached
Waiver Form. To do so, Stay Cal’s representative should sign the enclosed Waiver Form and return
it, together with a check for $6,100. The check should indicate “R2-2020-1004” and be made
payable to “Waste Discharge Permit Fund.” The check should be sent to the following address:

State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Administrative Services
Accounting Branch

P.O. Box 1888

Sacramento, CA 95814

The Waiver Form and a copy of the check must be mailed to the Regional Water Board at the
following address:

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400

Oakland, CA 94612

Attention: Cleet Carlton

If Stay Cal HMB, LLC waives its right to a hearing and pays the assessed amount, the Regional
Water Board may not hold a hearing regarding this Complaint.

W January 21, 2020

Thomas Mumley Date
Assistant Executive Officer

Attachments: Attachment A - Waiver Form
Attachment B - Notices of Non-Compliance and Proof of Service
Attachment C - Conditional Offer to Settle and Proof of Service
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Attachment A

Waiver Form





WAIVER FORM
ACL COMPLAINT No. R2-2020-1004

By signing this waiver, | affirm and acknowledge the following:

| am duly authorized to represent Stay Cal HMB, LLC (hereinafter “Discharger”) in connection with the
Administrative Civil Liability (ACL) Complaint noted above (hereinafter “Complaint”). | am informed that California
Water Code section 13323, subdivision (b), states, “a hearing before the regional board shall be conducted within
90 days after the party has been served [with the complaint]. The person who has been issued a complaint may
waive the right to a hearing.”

[J opPTION 1: PAY THE CIVIL LIABILITY

(Check here and the appropriate box in subsection b if the Discharger waives the hearing requirement and
will pay the civil liability.)

a.
b.

| hereby waive any right the Discharger may have to a hearing before the Regional Water Board.

| certify that the Discharger will remit payment for the proposed civil liability following one of the
payment options below (please place a “v”” or “x” in the appropriate box and fill in blanks if
appropriate):

Payment Options:

I:l Pay full amount of $6,100 by check to the State following the directions for payment in the Complaint
to the “State Water Resources Control Board,” with a copy of the payment to the Regional Water
Board.

I:l Pay a portion to the State and pay the remaining balance (up to a maximum of 50 percent of the
assessed liability, less any Regional Water Board staff costs) toward the Supplemental Environment
Projects (SEP) Fund to supplement the Regional Monitoring Program (RMP). This SEP Fund will
supplement RMP studies that would not otherwise be conducted through the RMP’s annually
approved cost allocations. The guiding principal of the RMP is to collect data and communicate
information about water quality in the San Francisco Estuary in support of management decisions
to restore and protect beneficial uses of the region’s waters. Information about the RMP is at
http://www.sfei.org/rmp. Funding for the RMP is managed and administered by the non-profit San
Francisco Estuary Institute. No funds will go to the Regional Water Board. The Regional Water
Board will consider the Discharger to have fulfilled its obligation for this SEP after its contribution to
the SEP Fund has been received by the San Francisco Estuary Institute. Selection of the SEP Fund
option does not change the total amount the Discharger will pay.

$ Amount to be paid to the SEP Fund (cannot exceed $500).

$ Amount to be paid to the State Water Pollution Cleanup and Abatement Account
($6,100 minus amount inserted above)

$6,100 Total assessed mandatory minimum penalty (sum of amounts above).

Selection of the SEP Fund option will involve payment by two checks, one payable to the “State
Water Resources Control Board” and the other to the “Regional Monitoring Program.” The
Regional Water Board will send an invoice for any payment due to the San Francisco Estuary
Institute for the SEP Fund, and the State Water Resources Control Board will send an invoice for
payment due to the State.

| understand that payment of the above amounts constitutes a proposed settlement of the Complaint,
and that any settlement will not become final until after a 30-day public notice and comment period. If
the Regional Water Board receives significant new information or comments from any source
(excluding the Regional Water Board Prosecution Team) during this comment period, the Regional
Water Board’s Assistant Executive Officer may withdraw the Complaint, return any payment received,
and issue a new complaint. | understand that this proposed settlement is subject to approval by the
Regional Water Board or its Executive Officer, and that the Regional Water Board may consider this
proposed settlement in a public meeting or hearing. | also understand that approval of the settlement
will result in the Discharger having waived the right to contest the allegations in the Complaint and the
imposition of civil liability.
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WAIVER FORM
ACL COMPLAINT No. R2-2020-1004

d. lunderstand that payment of the above amount is not a substitute for compliance with applicable laws
and that continuing violations of the type alleged in the Complaint may subject the Discharger to further
enforcement, including additional civil liability.

e. lunderstand that if timely payment is not received, the Regional Water Board will adopt an ACL order
requiring payment.

[J oPTION 2: REQUEST A TIME EXTENSION

(Check here if the Discharger waives the 90-day hearing requirement in order to extend the hearing date
and/or hearing deadlines. Attach a separate sheet with the amount of additional time requested and the
rationale.)

| hereby waive any right the Discharger may have to a hearing before the Regional Water Board within 90 days
after service of the Complaint. By checking this box, the Discharger requests that the Regional Water Board delay
the hearing and/or hearing deadlines so the Discharger may have additional time to prepare for the hearing. It
remains within the discretion of the Regional Water Board Advisory Team to approve the extension.

[J oPTION 3: ENGAGE IN SETTLEMENT DISCUSSIONS

(Check here if the Discharger waives the 90-day hearing requirement in order to engage in settlement
discussions.)

| hereby waive any right the Discharger may have to a hearing before the Regional Water Board within 90 days
after service of the Complaint, but | reserve the ability to request a hearing in the future. | certify that the Discharger
will contact the Regional Water Board Prosecution Team within five business days of submittal of this waiver to
request that the Prosecution Team engage in settlement discussions to attempt to resolve the outstanding
violations. As part of a settlement discussion, the Discharger may propose a supplemental environmental project to
the extent such a project is authorized by law and the State Water Resources Control Board Policy on
Supplemental Environmental Projects. By checking this box, the Discharger requests that the Regional Water
Board Advisory Team delay the hearing so the Discharger and the Prosecution Team can discuss settlement. It
remains within the discretion of the Regional Water Board Advisory Team to agree to delay the hearing. Any
proposed settlement is subject to the conditions described above under “Option 1¢” and “Option 1d.”

Print Name and Title

Signature

Date
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Attachment B

Notices of Non-Compliance and Proof of Service

October 31, 2018: First Notice of Noncompliance for
Failure to Submit Construction Stormwater 2017-18
Annual Report by September 1, 2018

February 13, 2019: Second Notice of Noncompliance for
Failure to Submit Construction Stormwater 2017-18
Annual Report by September 1, 2018

Proof of Service
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San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board

Sent via certified mail and email

October 31, 2018
Stay Cal HMB LLC
Attn.: Hiten Suraj
2110 South El Camino Real
San Mateo, CA 94403

Subject: First Notice of Noncompliance for Failure to Submit Construction
Stormwater 2017-18 Annual Report by September 1, 2018

Facility: Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay
1410 Cabrillo Hwy S
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019

WDID No.: 241C374988

We have not received your facility’s annual report.
This is a Notice of Noncompliance for failing to submit an annual report as required by the
Construction Stormwater Permit. The report was due on September 1, 2018, but either was
not submitted or was incorrectly submitted. As of October 31, 2018, 83 percent of the over
1,100 facilities under permit in the San Francisco Bay Region had submitted their annual
report.

Please submit your report immediately to SMARTS.
This letter gives you 30 days to submit your report to avoid a penalty. The Regional Water
Board may impose a monetary penalty (Administrative Civil Liability) for the failure to
submit an annual report in an amount not less than $1,000, pursuant to California Water
Code Section 13399.33, and up to a maximum of $10,000 per day, pursuant to California
Water Code Sections 13385(a)(2) and (c)(1).

All reports must be submitted online to the SMARTS database at:
https://smarts.waterboards.ca.gov

Dr. TErRrY F. Young, cHair | Bruce H. WOLFE, EXECUTIVE OFFICER

1515 Clay St., Suite 1400, Oakland, CA 94612 | www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay

-
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1t NNC, Construction Stormwater Annual Report October 31, 2018

All facilities regulated by the Construction Stormwater General Permit must submit an
annual report each year on September 1.

Your facility is covered under the Construction Stormwater General Permit, Order No. 2009-
0009-DWQ), as amended. As such, your facility is required to submit an annual report to the
SMARTS database by September 1 of each year.

If you are having difficulty using SMARTS, please first consult the SMARTS Help Guide:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/smarts/construction/const_h
elp_guides.shtml. If you still need help, please contact the SMARTS Helpdesk via email to:
stormwater @ waterboards.ca.gov, with a copy to us at r2stormwater @ waterboards.ca.gov.

Next step as applies to your situation
1. You have not yet submitted your facility’s annual report.
Complete the annual report in the SMARTS database by November 30, 2018.

2. As of June 30, 2018, the facility had closed or is no longer operating.
Please submit a Notice of Termination application to the SMARTS database. Ensure that
the application is certified by the Legally Responsible Person (LRP). If your facility had
Construction Stormwater Permit coverage between July 1, 2017, and June 30, 2018,
regardless of whether you believe coverage was required, the facility is required to
submit an annual report.

3. You believe the Annual Report was already submitted.

All annual reports are required to be submitted through the SMARTS database. Possible

reporting errors include:

e The Legally Responsible Person did not certify the annual report in SMARTS. This is
the most common report submittal error. When you submit your report to SMARTS,
make sure that the Status field shows “submitted.”

® You submitted a paper copy instead of submitting the report online through
SMARTS. Please note: when we receive paper reports, we contact the facility to
explain the requirement to submit the report to SMARTS. To our knowledge, we did
not receive any paper reports this year, but it is possible that a report could have
gotten misrouted in our office.

4. You believe your facility does not require permit coverage, and therefore, you believe the
facility should not be required to submit an annual report.
If your facility had Construction Stormwater Permit coverage between July 1, 2017, and
June 30, 2018, regardless of whether you believe coverage was required, the facility is
required to submit an annual report. However, we do want to hear from you if you
believe the permit does not apply to your facility so that we can evaluate whether your
facility should remain under permit coverage.

Please contact us by email at r2stormwater @waterboards.ca.gov or leave a message at
(510) 622-2402, and provide the following information:

¢ The facility name, address, and WDID number
® Your name, email address, and phone number



mailto:r2stormwater@waterboards.ca.gov
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1t NNC, Construction Stormwater Annual Report October 31, 2018

¢ The reason you believe the facility does not require Construction Stormwater Permit
coverage.

We will get back to you with any questions and to determine whether your facility requires
Construction Stormwater Permit coverage. We may need to inspect your facility to make this
determination.

Our contact information

If you have questions, you can reach us by email to r2stormwater @ waterboards.ca.gov or leave a
message for us at (510) 622-2402. We will respond within two business days. We will respond
by email unless you request that we call you. In your message, please provide your name and
contact information, the site name and WDID, and the nature of your question.

Sincerely,

~

Keith H. Lichten, Chief
Watershed Management Division

cc: Hiten Suraj hsuraj@aol.com
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San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board

Sent via certified mail and email

February 13, 2019
Stay Cal HMB LLC
Attn.: Hiten Suraj
2110 South El Camino Real
San Mateo, California 94403

Subject: Second Notice of Noncompliance for Failure to Submit Construction
Stormwater 2017-18 Annual Report by September 1, 2018

Site: Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay
1410 Cabrillo Hwy S
Half Moon Bay, California 94019

WDID No.: 2 41C374988

We have not received your site’s annual report.
This is a Second Notice of Noncompliance for failing to submit an annual report as
required by the Construction Stormwater Permit. The report was due on September 1,
2018, but either was not submitted or was incorrectly submitted. As of February 6, 2019,
95 percent of the over 1,400 facilities under permit in the San Francisco Bay Region had
submitted their annual report.

Please submit your report immediately to SMARTS.
This letter gives you 30 days to submit your report to avoid a penalty. If you do not, the
Water Board is required to impose a monetary penalty (Administrative Civil Liability) for
the failure to submit an annual report in an amount not less than $1,000, pursuant to
California Water Code Section 13399.33, and may impose a penalty of up to a maximum
of $10,000 per day, pursuant to California Water Code Sections 13385(a)(2) and (c)(1).

All reports must be submitted online to the SMARTS database at:
https://smarts.waterboards.ca.gov

DR. TERRY F. YOUNG, CHAIR | THOMAS MUMLEY, INTERIM EXECUTIVE OFFICER

1515 Clay St., Suite 1400, Oakland, CA 94612 | www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay
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2" NNC, Construction Stormwater Annual Report February 13, 2019

All sites regulated by the Construction Stormwater Permit must submit an annual report
each year on September 1.

Your site is covered under the Construction Stormwater Permit, Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ, as
amended (Permit). As such, you are required to submit an annual report for the site to the
SMARTS database by September 1 of each year.

If you are having difficulty using SMARTS, please first consult the SMARTS Help Guide:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/smarts/construction/const_h
elp_guides.shtml. If you still need help, please contact the SMARTS Helpdesk via email to:
stormwater @ waterboards.ca.gov, with a copy to us at r2stormwater @ waterboards.ca.gov.

Next step as applies to your situation
1. You have not yet submitted your site’s annual report.
Complete the annual report in the SMARTS database by March 13, 2019.

2. As of June 30, 2018, construction was complete at the site and it was appropriately
stabilized consistent with Permit requirements.
Please submit a Notice of Termination application to the SMARTS database. Ensure that
the application is certified by the Legally Responsible Person (LRP). If your site had
Permit coverage between July 1, 2017, and June 30, 2018, regardless of whether you
believe coverage was required, you are required to submit an annual report for the site.

3. You believe the Annual Report was already submitted.
All annual reports are required to be submitted through the SMARTS database. Possible
reporting errors include:

e The Legally Responsible Person did not certify the annual report in SMARTS. This is
the most common report submittal error. When you submit your report to SMARTS,
make sure that the Status field shows “submitted.”

® You submitted a paper copy instead of submitting the report online through
SMARTS. Please note: when we receive paper reports, we contact the facility to
explain the requirement to submit the report to SMARTS. To our knowledge, we did
not receive any paper reports this year, but it is possible that a report could have
gotten misrouted in our office.

4. You believe the site does not require Permit coverage, and therefore, you believe you
should not be required to submit an annual report for it.
If your site had Permit coverage between July 1, 2017, and June 30, 2018, regardless of
whether you believe coverage was required, you are required to submit an annual report.
However, we do want to hear from you if you believe the Permit does not apply to the
site so that we can evaluate whether the site should remain covered under the Permit.
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2" NNC, Construction Stormwater Annual Report February 13, 2019

Please contact us by email at r2stormwater @waterboards.ca.gov or leave a message at
(510) 622-2402, and provide the following information:

e The site name, address, and WDID number
® Your name, email address, and phone number
¢ The reason you believe the site does not require Permit coverage.

We will get back to you with any questions and to determine whether your site requires Permit
coverage. We may need to inspect the site to make this determination.

Our contact information

If you have questions, you can reach us by email to r2stormwater @ waterboards.ca.gov, or leave
a message for us at (510) 622-2402. We will respond within two business days. We will respond
by email unless you request that we call you. In your message, please provide your name and
contact information, the site name and WDID, and the nature of your question.

Sincerely,

~

Keith H. Lichten, Chief
Watershed Management Division

Cc (via email): Hiten Suraj hsuraj@aol.com
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Package Details Charges Tracking History  Proof of Delivery

Ship Address: Hiten Suraj
Stay Cal HMB LLC
2110 South El Camino Real

Ship From: San Francisco Bay
RWQCB

San Mateo Oakland
CA 04403 US CA Q4612 US
Order #: Shipping Cost: 0.47 USD

PO # Accessorial Cost: 4.95 USD

Shipment ID: 204 Other Cost: 0.00 USD

Carrier: USPS Total Cost: 5.42 USD

Carrier Service: First-Class Mail®
Shipment Weight: 0.0625 LB
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1515 Clay Street Ste 1400

Attention To: Hiten Suraj
Stay Cal HMB LLC
2110 South El Caminc Real
San Mateo
CA 04403 US
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4,95 USD
0.00 USD
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204 Hiten Suraj 650-799-9636.. 94148149023858970.. Deliverad

There are no contents level items to view.
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Date Produced: 11/12/2018

WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD:

The following is the delivery information for Certified Mail™/RRE item number 9414 8149 0238 5897
0022 95. Our records indicate that this item was delivered on 11/05/2018 at 11:28 a.m. in SAN MATEO,

CA 94403. The scanned image of the recipient information is provided below.

Signature of Recipient :

Address of Recipient : oS L R
N <% % & =

Thank you for selecting the Postal Service for your mailing needs. If you require additional assistance,

please contact your local post office or Postal Service representative.

Sincerely,
United States Postal Service





Search for Package
9414814902385897003780

SEARCH mEEEA

Shipment Details Charges Documents Addresses

Package Details Charges Tracking History Proof of Delivery

Ship Address: Hiten Suraj Ship From: San Francisco Bay

Stay Cal HMB LLC RWQCB
2110 South El Camino Real 1515 Clay Street Ste 1400
San Mateo Oakland
CA 94403 US CA G4612 US
Order #: Shipping Cost: 0.50 USD
PO # Accessorial Cost: 5.10USD

Other Cost; 0.00 USD
Total Cost: 5.60 USD

Shipment ID: 1342
Carrier: USPS
Carrier Service: First-Class Mail®
Shipment Weight: 0.0625 LB

VOID SHIPMENT

Packages in Shipment:

Shipment Status: Delivered @

RE-PRINT DOCUMENTS

Package ID Attention To Receiver Phone Tracking No. Status

Attention To: Hiten Suraj
Stay Cal HMB LLC
2110 South El Camino Real
San Mateo
CA 04403 US

Tracking/PRO #: 9414814902385897003.. Shipping Cost: 0.50 USD
Package ID: 1342 Accessorial Cost: 5.10 USD
Weight: 0.0625 LB Other Cost: 0.00 USD
Reference 1: Total Cost: 5.60 USD
Reference 2:

Reference 3: Package Status: Delivered @

VOID PACKAGE

Items in Package:

RE-FRINT LABEL

Part Number Quantity Description Unit Price Total Price

TRACK PACKAGE

1342 Hiten Suraj 650-799-9636.. 94148149023858970.. Delivered

There are no contents level items to view.





UNITED STATES

‘ POSTAL SERVICE

Date Produced: 02/18/2019
WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD:
The following is the delivery information for Certified Mail™/RRE item number 9414 8149 0238 5897

0037 80. Our records indicate that this item was delivered on 02/16/2019 at 11:27 a.m. in SAN MATEO,
CA 94403. The scanned image of the recipient information is provided below.

=1

Address of Recipient : i o
' _ '
b '

Thank you for selecting the Postal Service for your mailing needs. If you require additional assistance,
please contact your local post office or Postal Service representative.

Signature of Recipient :

Sincerely,
United States Postal Service
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Conditional Offer to Settle and Proof of Service

July 24, 2019: Conditional Offer to Settle Reporting
Violation of Construction Stormwater General Permit

Proof of Service
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San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board

July 24, 2019
WDID: 2 41C374988 (JHX)

Stay Cal HMB LLC
Attention: Hiten Suraj

2110 South EI Camino Real
San Mateo, CA 94403

Subject: Conditional Offer to Settle Reporting Violation
of Construction Stormwater General Permit

Facility: Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay located at 1410 Cabrillo Hwy S, Half
Moon Bay, CA 94019

To Construction Stormwater Discharger:

This is a conditional offer to settle an alleged reporting violation for a mandatory minimum
penalty of $1,000. The Construction Stormwater General Permit?* requires an annual report to be
submitted by September 1st following each reporting year. We did not receive an annual report
for the 2017/2018 reporting year by September 1, 2018. We sent two notices of noncompliance
and did not receive the report by the deadlines in those notices. The California Water Code now
requires the Water Board to impose a mandatory penalty. The Water Board is extending this
offer to settle for the minimum penalty required by statute. To avoid further enforcement, sign
and submit the “Acceptance of Conditional Resolution and Waiver of Right to Hearing” included
below by August 23, 2019, and agree to pay the mandatory minimum penalty of $1,000.

Acceptance of this conditional offer will settle the alleged reporting violation for the minimum
penalty required by statute. By settling, there will be no additional costs to you, including costs
we could recover by bringing this matter to a hearing before the Water Board. In addition, we
will not pursue discretionary enforcement to seek a higher penalty of up to $10,000 per day of
violation under Water Code section 13385. The remainder of this conditional offer letter further
explains the alleged violation, statutory liability, and how to respond (i.e., accept the offer,
contest the alleged violation, or reject the offer).

This conditional offer does not address any violation not specifically identified above.

1 General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities, Order No. 2009-
0009-DWQ, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) No. CAS000002

MicHAEL MONTGOMERY, EXEGUTIVE OFFIGER

1515 Clay St., Suite 1400, Oakland, CA 94612 | www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay

%3 RECYCLED





Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay
Conditional Offer to Settle Reporting Violation of the Industrial Stormwater General Permit

ALLEGED VIOLATION AND NOTICES OF NONCOMPLIANCE

Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay (Discharger) violated section XV1 of the
Construction Stormwater General Permit by failing to submit an annual report for the 2017/2018
reporting year by September 1, 2018. The Water Board sent notices of noncompliance as
required by Water Code section 13399.31 on October 31, 2018, and February 13, 2019. The
Discharger failed to submit the annual report by the deadlines in those notices of noncompliance.

STATUTORY LIABILITY

Water Code sections 13399.31 and 13399.33 require the Water Board to impose an
administrative civil liability (a fine) in an amount not less than $1,000 when a facility fails to
submit an annual report after receiving two notifications. Water Code section 13399.31(b)
requires the Water Board to notify the Discharger of its noncompliance first. If a response is not
received within 30 days, Water Code section 13399.31(c) requires the Water Board to send a
second notice of noncompliance before assessing a penalty. If the Discharger fails to certify and
submit an annual report via the State Board’s Stormwater Multiple Application and Report
Tracking System (SMARTS) within 60 days from the date of the first notice of noncompliance,
Water Code section 13399.31(d) requires the Water Board to impose a $1,000 penalty as
described in Water Code section 13399.33(c) and recover the costs the Water Board incurred to
enforce the permit. Through settlement of this violation as discussed below, no additional costs
will be assessed.

If the violation is not settled as discussed below, we may pursue discretionary penalties under
Water Code sections 13385(a)(2) and 13385(c)(1), where administrative civil liabilities may be
as high as $10,000 for each day in which the violation occurs, beginning from the date the
violation first occurred. Alternatively, we may refer the matter to the Office of the Attorney
General for prosecution and seek up to $25,000 per violation per day pursuant to Water Code
section 13385(b)(1).

CONDITIONAL OFFER TO SETTLE

As explained below, the Discharger has three options for responding to this conditional offer.
The Discharger can avoid a hearing before the Water Board and the possibility of discretionary
penalties by accepting this conditional offer and paying $1,000 as explained under Choice A.
More details about the terms of this option are included in the enclosed “Acceptance of
Conditional Resolution and Waiver of Right to Hearing” (Acceptance and Waiver).

e Choice A — Accept the Offer

If the Discharger accepts this conditional offer, then complete and return the Acceptance and
Waiver (enclosed) on or before August 23, 2019, to the following:

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Board
Attention: Jerry Xu
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400
Oakland, CA 94612
or
jerry.xu@waterboards.ca.gov
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Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay
Conditional Offer to Settle Reporting Violation of the Industrial Stormwater General Permit

When we receive the signed Acceptance and Waiver, this offer will become a proposed
settlement and part of publicly available Water Board files. We will post the Acceptance and
Waiver publicly for 30 days for comments. Based on the content of any comments received,
the Executive Officer will decide whether to accept this proposed settlement. If acceptable,
the Executive Officer will sign the Acceptance and Waiver and an email will be sent to the
Discharger as an invoice for payment within 30 days. This process is discussed further below
under “Conditions for Water Board Acceptance of Resolution.”

e Choice B — Contest the Alleged Violation

If the Discharger wishes to contest the alleged violation, we must receive the challenge by
August 23, 2019. To contest, please identify in writing, and send to the address above, the
basis for the challenge (factual error, affirmative defense, etc.). We will evaluate the
contested violation and take one of two actions:

1) Determine that the alleged violation is not supported, take no further action against the
Discharger for the alleged violation, and notify the Discharger of that determination; or

2) Determine that the alleged violation has merit and notify the Discharger of that
determination. The Discharger will then have 15 days from the date of the determination
to accept the conditional offer. If the Discharger chooses not to accept, or does not reply
to the determination, the Discharger should expect an enforcement investigation and
further action as described under Choice C.

e Choice C - Reject the Offer

If the Discharger chooses to reject this conditional offer or does not complete and return the
Acceptance and Waiver by the deadline, we will pursue additional enforcement including
discretionary enforcement, and the Discharger will receive notice of that action. In pursuing
additional enforcement, we will conduct a more thorough investigation and potentially use
information from the investigation to address additional violations. We will also seek to
recover staff costs associated with the issuance of an Administrative Civil Liability
Complaint. Therefore, penalties may be significantly greater than the mandatory minimum
liability set forth in this conditional offer.

CONDITIONS FOR WATER BOARD ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION

Federal regulations require the Water Board to publish and allow the public at least 30 days to
comment on any settlement of an enforcement action addressing a violation (40 C.F.R.

8§ 123.27(d)(2)(iii)). Upon receipt of the Discharger’s Acceptance and Waiver, we will publish a
notice of the proposed settlement of the violation.

If we receive no comments within the 30-day period and there are no new material facts
available, we will ask the Executive Officer to execute the Acceptance and Waiver as a
stipulated order assessing the uncontested penalty amount pursuant to Water Code section
13399.33.

If significant comments are received in opposition to the proposed settlement, this offer may be

withdrawn. In that case, we will also treat as withdrawn the Acceptance and Waiver and address
the alleged violation in a formal liability assessment proceeding. At the liability assessment
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Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay
Conditional Offer to Settle Reporting Violation of the Industrial Stormwater General Permit

hearing, the Discharger will be free to make arguments as to the alleged violation. Acceptance of
this conditional offer will not in any way be binding or used as evidence against the Discharger.
The Discharger will be provided with further information on the liability assessment proceeding
under such circumstances.

If the Executive Officer executes the Acceptance and Waiver, payment shall be due to the Waste
Discharge Permit Fund within 30 calendar days in accordance with Water Code sections
13399.37(a) and 13399.33. Failure to pay in full by the required deadline may subject the
Discharger to further liability.

OPPORTUNITY FOR SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT

In lieu of paying the entire settlement amount to the Waste Discharge Permit Fund, the
Discharger may elect to apply 50 percent of the penalty to fund a supplemental environmental
project.? This option is discussed in the enclosed Acceptance and Waiver.

There is currently only one option for funding a supplemental environmental project: a fund to
supplement the Regional Monitoring Program.® The Regional Monitoring Program collects data
and communicates information about water quality in the San Francisco Estuary in support of
management decisions to restore and protect the region’s waters. Regional Monitoring Program
funds are managed and administered by the non-profit San Francisco Estuary Institute. More
information about the Regional Monitoring Program is available at http://www.sfei.org/rmp. The
funding would supplement water quality studies that would not otherwise be conducted through
the Regional Monitoring Program’s annually approved cost allocations. No funds would go to
the Water Board.

WATER BOARD CONTACT
If you want to discuss or have questions regarding this matter, please contact Jerry Xu at (510)
622-2469 or Jerry. Xu@waterboards.ca.gov

Sincerely,

Thomas Mumley
Assistant Executive Officer

Enclosures: (1) Acceptance and Waiver
(2) Notices of Noncompliance

2 pursuant to the Policy on Supplemental Environmental Projects (2017)
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/enforcement/docs/seps/20180503 sep_policy amd.pdf), up to
50 percent of the penalty may be applied to a supplemental environmental project.

3 See State Water Board Resolution No. 2017-0074
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted _orders/resolutions/2017/rs2017 _0074.pdf).
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ORDER NO.

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONAL RESOLUTION
AND WAIVER OF RIGHT TO HEARING
for
Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay
1410 Cabrillo Hwy S, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019

ALLEGED VIOLATION AND NOTICES OF VIOLATION

Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay (Discharger) violated section XV1 of the General
Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance
Activities, Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ, NPDES No. CAS000002 (Construction Stormwater
General Permit), by failing to submit an annual report for the 2017/2018 reporting year by
September 1, 2018. As required by California Water Code (Water Code) section 13399.31, the
San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water Board) issued notices of
noncompliance to the Discharger on October 31, 2018, and February 13, 2019. By statute, the
Discharger is now subject to a minimum penalty of $1,000 for failing to submit the annual report
by the deadlines established in the notices of noncompliance.

ACCEPTANCE AND WAIVER

By signing below and returning this Acceptance of Conditional Resolution and Waiver of Right to
Hearing (Acceptance and Waiver) to the Water Board, the Discharger hereby accepts the
conditional offer to settle the alleged violation through payment of mandatory minimum penalties
and waives its right to a hearing before the Water Board to dispute the alleged violation.

The Discharger agrees that the conditional offer (enclosed with this Acceptance and Waiver)
shall serve as a complaint pursuant to Article 2.5 of the Water Code and that no separate complaint
is required for the Water Board to assert jurisdiction over the alleged violation. The Discharger
agrees to pay the penalties authorized by Water Code section 13399.33, which shall be deemed
payment in full of any civil liability pursuant to Water Code section 13399.31 that otherwise might
be assessed for the violation described above. The Discharger understands that this Acceptance and
Waiver waives its right to contest the alleged violation and the amount of civil liability for the
violation.

The Discharger understands that this Acceptance and Waiver does not address or resolve liability
for any violation not specifically identified herein. Upon execution by the Discharger, the
Acceptance and Waiver shall be returned to the following:

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Board
Attention: Jerry Xu
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400
Oakland, CA 94612
or
jerry.xu@waterboards.ca.gov

The Discharger understands that federal regulations set forth at title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, section 123.27(d)(2)(iii), require the Water Board to publish notice of, and provide at
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Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay WDID No.: 2 41C374988

Acceptance of Conditional Resolution and Waiver of Right to Hearing

least 30 days for, public comment on any proposed resolution of an enforcement action.
Accordingly, this Acceptance and Waiver, prior to execution by the Executive Officer of the
Water Board, will be published for public comment as required by law.

If no comments are received within the notice period that cause the Executive Officer to reject
the settlement, the Executive Officer may execute the Acceptance and Waiver. Water Board
resolution of this violation will preclude State Water Resources Control Board action for the
same violations.

The Discharger understands that, if significant comments are received in opposition to the
conditional offer, the offer may be withdrawn. In that circumstance, the Discharger will be
advised of the withdrawal and an administrative civil liability complaint may be issued and the
matter may be set for a hearing before the Water Board or State Water Resources Control Board.
For such a liability hearing, the Discharger understands that this Acceptance and Waiver will be
treated as if it were a settlement communication and will not be used as evidence in that hearing.

The Discharger understands that funds collected for violations pursuant to Water Code section
13399.31 shall be deposited in the Waste Discharge Permit Fund. The discharger has the option
to contribute half of the funds to a supplemental environmental project instead by checking
(placing a “v™ or “x” into) the box below. Selecting this option does not change the total amount
the Discharger must pay.

I:l The Discharger agrees to pay half the penalty ($500) to a supplemental environmental project.

Payment Option
Contribute to a Supplemental Environmental Project

By checking the box above, $500 of the $1,000 penalty will go to a
supplemental environmental project for the San Francisco Estuary Institute to
fund Regional Monitoring Program studies within the San Francisco Bay
estuary; the remaining $500 will go to the State Waste Discharge Permit Fund.

By not checking the box above, the entire $1,000 penalty will go to the State
Waste Discharge Permit Fund.

If the Discharger directs funds to the supplemental environmental project, the Water Board will
consider the Discharger to have fulfilled its obligation for the supplemental environmental project
when the San Francisco Estuary Institute receives the funds.

The Discharger understands that once the Executive Officer of the Water Board executes the
Acceptance and Waiver, payment no later than 30 days after the date of the Executive Officer’s
signature is a condition of this Acceptance and Waiver. If the Discharger does not select the
supplemental environmental project option above, the Discharger shall pay the total assessed civil
liability in full to the Waste Discharge Permit Fund. If the Discharger selects the supplemental
environmental project option, the Discharger shall pay the portion not paid toward the
supplemental environmental project to the Waste Discharge Permit Fund and pay the balance to
the San Francisco Estuary Institute for the Regional Monitoring Program.
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Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay WDID No.: 2 41C374988

Acceptance of Conditional Resolution and Waiver of Right to Hearing

Please do not send a check for payment with this Acceptance and Waiver. After posting for
public comment for 30 days, if the Executive Officer finds this Acceptance and Waiver
acceptable, the Executive Officer will counter-sign the Acceptance and Waiver and send an
email as an invoice for payment to the Discharger for payment within 30 days.

I hereby affirm that | am duly authorized to act on behalf of and to bind the Discharger in the
making and giving of this Acceptance and Waiver.

*hkkkkhkhkhkhkkhkhkhkhkhkhhkhkhkkhkhhkhkhkhhihhkiiihkhiiixk

Camerons Best Western Inn Half Moon Bay

By:

Printed or typed name Title

Signature Date
FhAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAhAAhAhhhhiiiih

IT ISSO ORDERED PURSUANT TO WATER CODE SECTION 13399.31

By:

Michael Montgomery Date
Executive Officer

California Regional Water Quality Control Board

San Francisco Bay Region
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FAQs )

USPS Tracking’

Track Another Package +

Remove X

Tracking Number: 70181830000021320161

Your item was delivered to an individual at the address at 10:52 am on July 25, 2019 in
SAN MATEO, CA 94403.
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July 25, 2019 at 10:52 am =~
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SAN MATEO, CA 94403
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See Less N
Can’t find what you’re looking for?
Go to our FAQs section to find answers to your tracking questions.
1/3/2020
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